


















 

425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200, Fort Washington, PA 19034 
P: 215.283.9444 

mcmahonassociates.com | bowman.com 

January 20, 2023 
 

Mr. Sean Halbom     
Township Manager     
Worcester Township    
1721 South Valley Forge Road   
P.O. Box 767     
Worcester, PA 19490  

Attention:    Mr. Robert D’Hulster, Public Works Director  

RE: Traffic Review #4 - Transportation Impact Assessment/Final Subdivision Plans/Highway 
Occupancy Permit Plans 

 Zacharczuk Residential Development – 16 Single-Family Homes  
 Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA     
 McMahon Project No. 822655.11 

Dear Sean: 

In response to the Township’s request, McMahon, a Bowman company, (McMahon) has completed our 
fourth (4th) traffic engineering review of the proposed development to be located at 2581 Skippack Pike 
(S.R. 0073) in Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA.  According to the materials submitted to our 
office, the development is proposed to consist of 16 single-family homes proposing one full-movement 
driveway along Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) and an emergency-only access provided to/from Bethel Road (S.R. 
3006).  

The following documents were reviewed in preparation of our comments: 

 Transportation Impact Assessment – Zacharczuk Residential Tract, prepared by Pennoni Associates, 
Inc., last revised December 2022. 

 Final Subdivision Plans – Zacharczuk Tract, prepared by STA Engineering, Inc., last revised 
November 28, 2022. 

 Response to Comments Letter – Zacharczuk Tract, prepared by STA Engineering, Inc., dated January 
3, 2023. 

 Highway Occupancy Permit Plans – Low Volume Driveway Skippack Pike, prepared by STA 
Engineering, Inc., last revised December 27, 2022. 

 Township Approval Resolution 2022-21, enacted December 21, 2022. 
 

Based on our review of the documents listed above, McMahon offers the following minor comments to be 
addressed by the applicant, along with some administrative items of note, and otherwise find the 
submission to be satisfactory to our office at this time:   
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General 

1. A response letter must continue to be provided with any resubmission detailing how each 
comment below has been addressed, and where each can be found in the resubmission materials 
(i.e., page number(s)) to assist in the re-review process.   Additional comments may follow upon 
review of any resubmitted and more detailed plans as the land development process proceeds. 

 
2. The updated Transportation Impact Assessment is satisfactory to us at this time and addresses our 

prior comments. 
 

3. The applicant is in the process of securing a PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit (HOP) since 
Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) and Bethel Road (S.R. 3006) are State Roadways for any work that will be 
completed within the legal right of way on Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) and Bethel Road (S.R. 3006). 
The Township and our office must be copied on all HOP submissions, as well as correspondence 
between the applicant and PennDOT, and invited to any and all meetings among these parties.  A 
copy of the PennDOT permit(s) should be provided to the Township upon receipt. 
 

4. According to the Township’s Roadway Sufficiency Analysis, the proposed development is located 
in Transportation Service Area North, which has a corresponding impact fee of $3,977 per “new” 
weekday afternoon peak hour trip and the applicant will be required to pay a Transportation Impact 
Fee in accordance with the Township’s Transportation Impact Fee Ordinance.  Based on information 
provided in the transportation impact assessment (TIA), the proposed development is expected to 
generate 18 “new” trips during the weekday afternoon peak hour resulting in a transportation 
impact fee of $71,586.    

 
Final Subdivision Plans 
 

5. The plans must be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  The applicant’s engineer has indicated in its response that the plans 
are signed and sealed; however, we cannot locate the seal and signature on the plans provided. 

 
Highway Occupancy Permit Plans 
 

6. We have no additional comments on the Highway Occupancy Permit Plans at this time.    
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We trust that this review letter responds to your request.  If you or the Township have any questions, or 
require clarification, please contact me or Michelle Eve, P.E. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Casey A. Moore, P.E    
Executive Vice President     
 
CAM/BMJ/MEE 
 
cc:  Joseph Nolan, P.E., Arro Consulting, Inc. (Township Engineer) 
     Robert Brant, Esq. (Township Solicitor) 
      Devin Ralph, Esq. (Township Solicitor) 
      Fran Hanney, PennDOT 
      Scott Burton, PennDOT 
      Mike Downs, Toll Mid-Atlantic LP Company, Inc. (Applicant) 
      Brian Keaveney, P.E., Pennoni Associates (Applicant’s Traffic Engineer) 
      Susan Rice, P.E., STA Engineering, Inc. (Applicant’s Engineer) 
      Chuck Splendore, Esq., McBride & Murphy (Applicant’s Attorney) 
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